
 

MARICOPA ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
CONTINUUM OF CARE PLANNING SUBCOMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

May 14, 2007 
 
 

MEMBERS ATTENDING:  
*Annette Stein, Maricopa County, Chair 
*Maryann Beerling, New Arizona Family 
Robert Duvall, Community Information and 
Referral 
Dick Geasland, Tumbleweed 
Katie Hobbs, Sojourner Center 
Theresa James, City of Tempe, Vice Chair 
Deanna Jonovich, City of Phoenix 
*John Landrum, The Salvation Army 
*Nick Margiotta, City of Phoenix 
Ric Mason, Labor’s Community Service 
Agency 
*Elizabeth Morales, AZ Behavioral Health 
Co 
Darlene Newsom, United Methodist Outreach 
Ministries 
Amy Schwabenlender, Valley of the Sun 
United Way 
Laura Skotnicki, Save the Family 
Michelle Thomas, YWCA 
*John Wall, CASS 
*Lisa Wilson, City of Mesa 
+ Margot Cordova for Diana Yazzie Devine, 

Native American Connections 
 

OTHERS PRESENT 
Mike Bell, St Vincent de Paul 
Andy Hall, DES 
Mike Levy, Nova, Inc.  
Mattie Lord, DES 
Carol Mangold, Chrysalis  
Frankie Quick, Phoenix Shanti 
Jacki Taylor, Arizona Coalition to End 
Homelessness  
Amy Vogelson, SWBH 
Diana Whittle, City of Glendale 

 
*Those members neither present nor represented 
by proxy.  
+Those members present by audio or 
videoconference. 

 
1.  Call to Order and Introductions 
Brande Mead, MAG, stated that Chair Stein was unable to attend the meeting due to an 
illness; she also stated that Vice Chair Theresa James would be running late. 
Introductions ensued and the meeting was called to order at 2:15 p.m.  
 
2.   Approval of the April 16, 2007 Meeting Minutes
Ms. Mead asked for any revisions to the April 16, 2007 meeting minutes. Hearing none, 
she called for a motion to approve the minutes. Richard Geasland made a motion to 
approve the minutes. Laura Skotnicki seconded the motion. The minutes were passed 
unanimously.  
 
3.  Call to the Audience  



 

No comments were made at this time.  
 
4.  2007 HUD Application Objectives and Action Steps 
Brande Mead stated that revisions had been made based on the last Planning 
Subcommittee meeting and from goals listed in the Interagency Community Council on 
Homelessness Housing Plan. She stated that the goals are in draft form and the finalized 
document would be sent for approval by the Continuum of Care Regional Committee on 
Homelessness on May 21st. Ms. Mead stated that she is looking to the agencies to take 
responsibility on some goals listed under the action steps category.   
 
Ms. Mead stated that the permanent housing goal, 71.5 percent set by HUD, is currently 
being met by the Continuum at 76.76 percent.  She asked for agency input on the life 
skills training goal. Darlene Newsom said that she thought all of the agencies did life 
skills training programs and didn’t know if they could be increased without additional 
funding. Ms. Mead asked if there was another goal they thought should be included 
instead. Richard Geasland suggested cataloging what is currently being done and then 
setting benchmarks based on the current environment. Amy St. Peter asked if they could 
find a way to measure effectiveness of the life skills programs. Laura Skotnicki suggested 
identifying those who are not doing well and pair them with someone who is. Ms. 
Newsom added that her agency does pre and post testing of their life skills programs. Ms. 
St. Peter asked if anyone was willing to be listed as the lead for that goal. She stated that 
without participation from other members of the Continuum she was afraid that this 
might come off to HUD as not being a community effort.  
 
Ms. Mead stated that the HUD goal for clients exiting with employment income is 18 
percent and that the Continuum is currently exceeding that goal at 23 percent. Ms. Mead 
asked the group for suggestions on goals to maintain or exceed that percentage.  A 
member suggested tracking those who are doing well and pairing them with those who 
are not to improve the overall employment percentage.  
 
Ms. Skotnicki asked what the “lead person responsible” meant. Ms. Mead stated that the 
lead is the main contact and responsible person for ensuring that the coordination of the 
goal is taking place. Deanna Jonovich asked if goals were trying to be identified for the 
whole Continuum or if the goals were supposed to be specific to each agency. Ms. Mead 
stated it would depend on how the goal is written but that the goals are meant for the 
continuum overall. Ms. St. Peter stated that the role of the “lead person responsible” is to 
work with other agencies to ensure the goal is accomplished. The lead person will help 
keep the action on the minds of the other agencies either formally or informally. The lead 
person would not necessarily be completing the goals themselves but ensuring that 
everyone is looking towards the goal. Ric Mason stated that he felt that the definition of 
the lead person was off putting and wondered if staff could change the definition of the 
lead person. Amy St. Peter said that the definition of the lead person in the HUD 
application is part of the application instructions and cannot be changed.   
 
Brande Mead asked if anyone had any thoughts on goals under the employment category. 
Richard Geasland referred to one of the goals listed and asked what it meant to “engage” 



 

participants with employment and how it could be tracked. Ms. Mead stated that the goals 
should be changed to reflect an action item that is more measurable.  She said that 
agencies that are doing well in that area could be identified and they could lead a 
technical assistance workshop on ways for other agencies to improve it that area.  
 
Amy St. Peter stated that that they have to be very realistic about what the agencies can 
do and achieve, while being able to show HUD that they are challenging themselves.  
 
Richard Geasland indicated that it is likely that employment income would increase for 
individuals with and improvement in their education.  Ms. Mead asked if there are 
employment programs in existence that could be used as a model. Laura Skotnicki stated 
that they work with Maricopa work force programs. Margo Cordova added that Native 
American Connections also partners with others in terms of employment and education.  

 
Ms. Mead mentioned that the City of Tempe has had two Project Homeless Connects and 
asked if it is realistic to expand them to one new city each year.  Amy Schwabenlender 
added that she thought that the United Way could play a role in establishing project 
connects and engaging other cities.  

 
Mr. Geasland asked how collaboration between permanent housing providers and 
transitional housing providers could be measured. Ms. Mead said that it could be tracked 
by self reporting in the local application.  Ms. Newsom added that she thought Elizabeth 
Morales from ABC would be more appropriate as the lead person for those goals.  

 
Ms. Newsom suggested changing the goal of using one million dollars for chronically 
homeless individuals and suggested changing it to include families. Ms. Mead stated that 
the goal was based on HUD Samaritan Initiative funding which would not include 
families, only individuals. Ms. St. Peter asked if anyone had any ideas for funding 
sources that they could target homeless families. Ms. Skotnicki noted that she thought 
that the Continuum has not been addressing the chronically homeless families issue and 
the lack of permanent housing for families. Bob Duvall stated that the Initiative was 
based off of a Dennis Culhane study. He noted that the Continuum would need a research 
study to prove the need for chronically homeless families. Mr. Geasland asked if a local 
study would make a difference to HUD. Ms. Cordova noted that the goals provided by 
HUD only mentioned persons, and that it didn’t specify individuals or families. Ms. 
Mead suggested adding chronic families to the goal for the homeless capacity paper. Ms. 
St. Peter agreed that that goal could be changed to reflect homeless families.  

 
 5.  Gaps Analysis Discussion  
 Brande Mead stated that the Gaps Analysis Workgroup met on May 7, 2007 with many 

people in attendance. She stated that they poured over the data provided by the Homeless 
Street Count, Shelter Count, Housing Activity Chart, numbers from the previous years 
and discussion on what the community is like now. They reviewed the data and decided 
to be consistent with HUD and their emphasis for permanent housing beds. Overall the 
emergency shelter beds decreased, transitional housing beds leveled off, and permanent 
housing beds increased. They decided to take the 1300 from last year and split the 



 

number as 60 percent for individuals and 40 percent for families. Amy St. Peter stated 
that they took the chronically homeless and SMI numbers and put them into permanent 
housing unmet need for a truly housing first model. Richard Geasland stated that he was 
unable to attend the Gaps meeting and noted that as of January there were over 400 youth 
turned away in 7 months. Brande Mead asked if he felt like that the numbers needed to be 
increased. Bob Duvall stated that would be 2 bed nights on an average night. Amy St. 
Peter said that in the numbers they did not specify a difference between adults and youth 
and that the numbers could be included.  

  
 Laura Skitnicki made a motion to approve the numbers as they were presented. Bob 

Duvall seconded the motion. The vote passed unanimously. 
 

 
 6.  City of Phoenix Watkins Overflow Shelter Update 

Deanna Jonovich stated that Watkins Overflow Shelter opened up in November. She 
stated that the City had been collaborating with United Methodist Outreach Ministries 
(UMOM) and Central Arizona Shelter Services (CASS).  She stated that this year the 
decision was made to focus the shelter on single women and families. Ms. Jonovich said 
that the shelter used to house 45 single women and 10-12 families. Currently, the shelter 
holds 100-140 single women and 20-25 families. Ms. Jonovich stated that in April, the 
City Council approved a policy change which would allow for Watkins to be open year 
round. The Council also approved funding 600, 000 dollars to fill in the gap in funding 
needed to maintain the shelter year round. Darlene Newson stated that the program at the 
shelter is different than before and that the shelter is now open 24 hours a day, seven days 
a week. She said that some women leave the shelter to head to the Human Services 
Campus while others have the opportunity to stay at the shelter all day. Case managers 
also work with families and they hope to also have case management for the single 
women so that everyone may find permanent housing. They currently have two air 
conditioners and the remodeling will be done in either June or July.  
 
Richard Geasland asked if the shelter was still open 24 hours with the remodeling. He 
stated he heard clients had been asked to leave. Ms. Newsom replied that special 
arrangements had been made at the Campus for residents to be there during the day till 
construction was over, those who had serious needs were able to remain at Watkins. 
Laura Skotnicki asked how people were referred to Watkins. Deanna Jonovich stated the 
clients need to go to the Central Phoenix Family Center to be picked up and single 
women can be picked up to the Human Services Campus. Richard Geasland asked if they 
can be dropped off by car. Ms. Newsom stated the special arrangements can be made.  
 
7. 2007 Ranking and Review Committee Summary 
Amy Schwabenlender stated that the Ranking and Review Committee finished their 
rankings the previous week and stated she hoped the information she can share is helpful. 
Ms. Schwabenlender noted that the Review Committee was on the small side with 11 
volunteers and that there were 44 applications, with 5 agencies brought in for clarification 
questions in front of the Committee. She said that the volunteers felt that the changes in 
the local application made it easier to understand the roles of the agencies and felt that 



 

overall the applications were stronger than the previous year. The volunteers noted that 
the budget section needs improvement due to a lack of clarity. Ms. Schwabenlender 
decided to provide agencies with feedback, if everyone was open and willing to receive 
the feedback.  
 
Ric Mason commented that he felt the United Way application process should provide 
the criteria tool of which their application is being ranked upon. Ms. Schwabenlender 
stated that it was not a United Way application, and that historically the score sheet was 
not provided to the agencies. Brande Mead stated that the score sheet was previously 
discussed and that they have plans on showing the score sheet next year. Margo Cordova 
stated that only the past few years agencies had not received a score sheet. Amy St. Peter 
thanked Amy Schwabenleder and Valley of the Sun United Way, noting the Continuum’s 
application would not score as well without the Ranking and Review Committee.  
 
 
8. Comments from the Committee 
Theresa James relayed that the City of Tempe had another Project Homeless Connect. 
They were able to place many homeless individuals into housing with the help of 
agencies like CASS, La Mesita, and Save the Family. She thanked everyone for their 
participation.   
 
Bob Duvall stated that on Thursday, May 17th, an HMIS System Assessment meeting will 
be held at 2:00 p.m. He stated that the meeting will be one of the last meetings they are 
going through the future goals of the project.  
 
Brande Mead said that earlier in the day she sent out an email stating that HUD has 
extended the application deadline to June 15th. HUD issued a technical correction and 
revised their logic model. She stated that every agency that turned in an application needs 
to redo their logic model. A due date will be issued when the new logic model is released 
by HUD.  Ms. Mead pointed out that there will be a quick turn around due to MAG’s 
own time frame.  
 
9. Adjourn 
The meeting adjourned at 3.08 pm. The next meeting will be held Monday, June 12, 2007 
in the Saguaro Room from 2:00-3:30 p.m. 
 
 


	OTHERS PRESENT

